Oracle[®] Hospitality OPERA Property Management Configuring the Transfer of Data Mart reservation_stat_daily from Property to SFA Release v5.0.04.00 and higher

March 2013



Oracle® Hospitality OPERA Property Management Licensing Information User Manual Version v5.0.04.00 and higher

Copyright © 2013, Oracle and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved.

This software and related documentation are provided under a license agreement containing restrictions on use and disclosure and are protected by intellectual property laws. Except as expressly permitted in your license agreement or allowed by law, you may not use, copy, reproduce, translate, broadcast, modify, license, transmit, distribute, exhibit, perform, publish, or display any part, in any form, or by any means. Reverse engineering, disassembly, or decompilation of this software, unless required by law for interoperability, is prohibited.

The information contained herein is subject to change without notice and is not warranted to be error-free. If you find any errors, please report them to us in writing.

If this software or related documentation is delivered to the U.S. Government or anyone licensing it on behalf of the U.S. Government, then the following notice is applicable:

U.S. GOVERNMENT END USERS: Oracle programs, including any operating system, integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, delivered to U.S. Government end users are "commercial computer software" pursuant to the applicable Federal Acquisition Regulation and agency-specific supplemental regulations. As such, use, duplication, disclosure, modification, and adaptation of the programs, including any operating system, integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, shall be subject to license terms and license restrictions applicable to the programs. No other rights are granted to the U.S. Government.

This software or hardware is developed for general use in a variety of information management applications. It is not developed or intended for use in any inherently dangerous applications, including applications that may create a risk of personal injury. If you use this software or hardware in dangerous applications, then you shall be responsible to take all appropriate fail-safe, backup, redundancy, and other measures to ensure its safe use. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates disclaim any liability for any damages caused by use of this software or hardware in dangerous applications.

Oracle and Java are registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates. Other names may be trademarks of their respective owners.

Intel and Intel Xeon are trademarks or registered trademarks of Intel Corporation. All SPARC trademarks are used under license and are trademarks or registered trademarks of SPARC International, Inc. AMD, Opteron, the AMD logo, and the AMD Opteron logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Advanced Micro Devices. UNIX is a registered trademark of The Open Group.

This software or hardware and documentation may provide access to or information about content, products, and services from third parties. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates are not responsible for and expressly disclaim all warranties of any kind with respect to third-party content, products, and services unless otherwise set forth in an applicable agreement between you and Oracle. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates will not be responsible for any loss, costs, or damages incurred due to your access to or use of third-party content, products, or services, except as set forth in an applicable agreement between you and Oracle.

Table of Contents

Introduction	5
Intended Audience	5
Overview	5
Data Mart Configuration Checklist	6
Data Mart Processing in OXI/OXI-HUB	9
Central Configuration	10
Central Parameters	
PMS Property Configuration	11
Application Settings	11
Internal PMS Parameter	11
OXI Parameter:	11
Internal OXI-HUB Parameter:	11
Start/Stop OXI and OXI-HUB Processors	13
For OXI interface:	13
For OXI_HUB interface:	
Business Event Configuration	14
Synchronize Data Marts	16
Synchronize OBI Data Mart Utility	
OBI Data Mart Synchronization Overview	
OBI & Datamart Synchronize Utility Screen Description	17
Sync. Reservation Statistics	17
Initial Sync of Reservation Summary	18
Sync. Block History Statistics	
Sync. Managers Report	18
OXI Resync Utility	19
Recommendations	19
Resync Option – Datamart	
Resynchronization History	20
Fields	21
Button Functions	21

Synchronize Profile Summary Tables	22
Data Request Option in OXI-HUB	23
Data Mart Items	24
Data Mart Staged Records	25
Stage Reservation Daily Statistics	25
Options	25
Reservation Daily Statistics Error Summary	26
Reservation Daily Statistics Suspended Record	26
Stage Reservation Summary Log	27
Options	27
Reservation Summary Error Summary	28
Reservation Summary Suspended Record	28
Summary	30

Introduction

Intended Audience

This document is intended for OPERA SFA installers and other advanced users who need to set up the transfer of the reservation_stat_daily data mart from an Interfaced Property to Central for use in OPERA SFA and S&C Advanced Reporting. This document introduces configuration guidelines for the OPERA Data Mart Module (ODM) and is for MICROS internal use only.

Overview

OPERA Data Marts (ODM) are data repositories with summarized or aggregated data. Starting at the property level, dedicated OPERA processes capture groupings of select data from across the hundreds of OPERA tables and place the data in appropriate, specific OPERA data marts containing groupings of similar information (relational tables). This process typically occurs at the End of Day sequence/Night Audit process that closes and balances each day's activities for the property. The data marts contain the most accurate data after the end of each business day.

For optimal performance when running Account Statistics reports in OPERA Sales & Catering, SFA and S&C Advanced Reporting, additional tables will capture the data from reservation_stat_daily by Account and summarize on a Daily, Monthly and Yearly basis. So that these tables can be populated in SFA, reservation_stat_daily must be transferred (via OXI) from the Interfaced Property. The setup described in this document is required for all Properties interfaced to SFA via OXI.

The minimum requirement for this transfer is OPERA v5.0.03.01 (both Central and the Remote Property have to be on v5.0.03.01 or higher).

If ORS and/or OCIS are already connected to interfaced properties, an analysis of the existing configuration must be done. This is done to assess the impact of the new messages and to consider whether more hardware and disk space is needed.

Data Mart Configuration Checklist

This Checklist is an overview of the procedures contained in the following pages for configuring the transfer of reservation_stat_daily. The page where more detailed instructions in this document can be found is also listed.

Note: If you are new to Data Mart configuration, it is recommended that you follow the procedures in the body of the document first (as opposed to this checklist) to become more familiar with the sequence and instructions.

Step	In Remote Property	In ORS	Check	Action	Script
1		Stop resv stat daily population if active. (See page 10 for details)		Set ENABLE_RESV_STAT_DA ILY='N'	update application_parameters set parameter_value = 'N' where parameter_name = 'ENABLE_RESV_STAT_DAILY' and resort='XXX' (where XXX is Resort Name).
2	Update ORS parameter (See page 10 for details)			This parameter controls if the child tables of reservation_stat_daily are populated.	When Active, the following tables will be populated when resv stat daily is inserted via OXI: - company_stat_daily - agent_stat_daily - source_stat_daily - profile_monthly_statistics - profile_yearly_statistics
3	Enable datamart upload. (See page 11 for details)			Set ENABLE_DATAMART_UPL OAD to 'Y'	Update application_parameters set parameter_value = 'Y' where parameter_name = 'ENABLE_DATAMART_UPLOA D'
4	Update OXI parameter. (See page 11 for details)			Set OXI parameters to allow the resync of specific datamarts, select each letter of the data mart you want to re-sync - If you do not see the option after enabling data mart upload Exit fully out of the application and go back in and they will be visible.	Direction: Data from OPERA To External System. Set to N to disable or a combination of other choices to enable desired messages. For transferring reservation_stat_daily set to `R' N: None. F: Financial daily statistics. M: Manager's report. R: Reservation daily statistics. S: Reservation Summary. P: SC Booking Production. O: SC Rooms Status

Table 1: Transferring Data Mart reservation_stat_daily Configuration Checklist

Step	In Remote Property	In ORS	Check	Action	Script
	rioperty				Snapshot. C: SC Catering Revenue. U: Catering Production. T: Catering Snapshot. A: Room Category Inventory.
5	Update Internal OXI-HUB parameter (See page 11 for details)				 B: Allotment Daily Statistics. Data from external system to OPERA> Valid values are RMNSTCYVD and X. RMNSTCYVD means that when conversion fails for a particular field, the record is not staged and the value from the external system is inserted in the OPERA Data Mart record. R: Rate Code Market Code N: Channel Code S: Source Code T: Room Type C: Country Code
5	Stop and Start OXI and OXI-HUB processors. (See page 13 for details)			Do this after parameter changes for best practice.	Y: Nationality V: VIP Code D: TRX Code
	Configure Business Events. (See page 14 for details)		Configuration>Setup >Business Events>Configuratio n.	Configure: CLOSE BUSINESS DATE (Opera Version prior to V5.0.03.02) END OF DAY PROCEDURES (Opera Version V5.0.03.02+)	
3	Synchronize/Popula te datamarts in PMS. (See page 15 for details)	process a month	e system, so please first to test the and performance.	Run the "Synchronize OBI datamart utility" for Sync Reservation Statistics.	
)	Upload past data to ORS. (See page 18 for OXI Resync Utility or page 22 for Data Request in OXI-HUB for details (PMS v5 only)			Run the OXI Resync Utility or OXIHUB Request Data for all datamarts.	As of 5.0.02.01, OXI-HUB Data Request will prompt for deletion of ORS data for the date range being synched – Procedurally, OXI has been used for sending.
0			In ORS>Datamarts menu, clear Stage		

-	In Remote Property	In ORS	Check	Action	Script
			Reservation Daily Statistics and Stage Reservation Summary. If applicable, clear Stage Financial Statistics.		
	Refer to OPERA Online Help and the OBI Installation and Configuration Guide for more information on OBI installation and cube maintenance.				

Data Mart Processing in OXI/OXI-HUB

- Data mart messages and business events only get processed when the processors are idle (not busy processing other message types).
- Data mart messages are addressed to a virtual consumer called M0T0. Only when other threads (MxTy) are idle, will data mart messages be processed.
- If constant processing is required, additional threads can be allocated and assigned to empty OXI-HUB threads (threads for which no properties have been set up in OXI-HUB).

Central Configuration

In order to enable data mart transmission for a property in a Central system, these internal (back-end) and external parameters changes need to be made so past PMS data can be resynched to today's date. The internal parameter can be changed by Administrators or Technical Support.

Central Parameters

Disable the following internal parameter:

- ENABLE_RESV_STAT_DAILY When active, enables Logging of Reservation Stat Daily Table (in OIS/ ORS where data mart is Active.)
 - Set to 'N' to disable, as ORS will be receiving Reservation Daily Statistics Data Marts from the Property

Enable the following parameter:

OBI_POPULATE_RESVSTAT_TABLES_YN (POPULATE RESERVATION STATISTICS TABLES) – When active, the child tables of reservation_stat_daily will be populated

- Set to 'Y' so that the following child tables will be populated when reservation_stat_daily is inserted via OXI:
 - company_stat_daily
 - agent_stat_daily
 - source_stat_daily
 - profile_monthly_statistics
 - profile_yearly_statistics

After the Central internal parameters and settings are disabled, proceed to: **PMS Configuration** (next section) where you will prepare the system for the Night Audit.

• After PMS Configuration, proceed to OXI Resync where you synchronize past data from PMS to OXI to ORS, using the OXI Resync Utility. See OXI Resync Utility in the following pages. The OXI Resync process is done once, and thereafter the Night Audit will update the data marts.

PMS Property Configuration

After Central configuration, some additional settings have to be made for all properties interfaced with Central or integrated on the same database.

Application Settings

Internal PMS Parameter

These back-end parameters can be changed by Administrators or Technical Support.

- ENABLE_DATAMART_UPLOAD
 - Set to 'Y' to enable Data Mart upload from the Property to the Central System. (When this parameter is enabled, the OXI parameter SEND_DATAMART_MESSAGES will display, see below.)

OXI Parameter:

- SEND_DATAMART_MESSAGES: Direction Data from OPERA To External System. (This parameter only displays when the PMS parameter ENABLE_DATAMART_UPLOAD is enabled.)
 - Set to 'N' to disable, or a combination of other choices to enable the desired messages. For transferring reservation_stat_daily, set to 'R'.

N: None.

F: Financial daily statistics.

M: Manager's report.

- R: Reservation daily statistics.
- S: Reservation Summary.
- P: SC Booking Production.
- O: SC Rooms Status Snapshot.
- C: SC Catering Revenue.
- U: Catering Production.
- T: Catering Snapshot.
- A: Room Category Inventory.
- B: Allotment Daily Statistics.

Internal OXI-HUB Parameter:

These back-end parameters can be changed by Administrators or Technical Support.

BYPASS_CONVERSION_DM: Direction - Data from external system to OPERA. Valid values are RMNSTCYVD and X. RMNSTCYVD means that when conversion fails for a particular field, the record is not staged and the value from the external system is inserted in the OPERA Data Mart record. Mapping for each field is:

> R : RATE CODE M : MARKET CODE N : CHANNEL CODE S : SOURCE CODE T : ROOM TYPE C : COUNTRY CODE Y : NATIONALITY V : VIP CODE D : TRX CODE

For example if the parameter has values MS then,

if no conversion for the incoming market code (M) is found the record is not staged and external value gets inserted.

if no conversion for Channel (N) is found then the record is staged until conversion is created or external value is changed to a convertible value.

Start/Stop OXI and OXI-HUB Processors

This is recommended as a Best Practice after parameters have been set.

For OXI interface:

The Start/Stop Processor is located under Interface Status>Start/Stop Processor.

The Services that generate status for the Start/Stop Processor are located on the Database Server.

You must have Administrator permissions to access this machine and service.

Go to that machine and login; Start>Settings>Control Panel>Administrative Tools>Services.

The name of the service is called (i.e. OPERA Interface for [name]). Interface names included are: (OPERA Interface for Pegasus/UNIREZ/FTCRS/Holidex etc.).

For OXI_HUB interface:

The OXI_HUB interface does not carry Start/Stop Processor as our OXI interfaces do. Instead this is handled by the MICROS Fidelio Queue Manager [ORS].

Go to the machine and login; Start>Settings>Control Panel>Administrative Tools>Services.

Service name is MICROS-Fidelio Queue Manager [ORS].

Highlight service and right-click for service options.

Select Restart from the menu. The service will be Stopped/Restarted in one step.

Business Event Configuration

Note: For OPERA Sites below V5.0.03.02 requires CLOSE BUSINESS DATE to send the Reservation Daily Stat Datamart.

For OPERA Sites on V.5.0.03.02 or above CLOSE BUSINESS DATE is no longer required and should be replaced with END OF DAY PROCEDURES

Add the requirements for the following NIGHT AUDIT business event (for daily transmission). This allows PMS to send data mart data every Night Audit. Both are required:

END OF PROCEDURES

Datamarts that are uploaded when the END OF PROCEDURES business event is triggered in the Night Audit include:

- RESVDAILYSTAT Reservation Daily Statistics
- MANAGERSREPORT Managers Report
- FINDAILYSTAT Financial Daily Statistics
- ALLOTSTATDAILY Allotment Daily Statistics
- SCBOOKPROD SC Booking Production
- SCROOMSSNAPSHOT SC Rooms Snapshot
- SCCATERINGREVENUE SC Catering Revenue
- SCCATPRODUCTION SC Catering Production
- SCCATSNAPSHOT SC Catering Snapshot
- RTAV Room Category Inventory

ROLL BUSINESS DATE

Datamarts that are uploaded when the END OF PROCEDURES business event is triggered in the Night Audit include:

RESVSUMMARY - Reservation Summary

Access Configuration>Setup>Business Events>Configuration.

Select **ORS** from the External System LOV.

Select Night Audit from the Module LOV.

Select Search to reveal the available Business Events.

Select Edit to display the Data Element screen.

Select the Data Element screen and select Business Date for Close Business Date, End of Procedures and Roll Business Date.

MEXICO - Business Ever	nt Configurat	on	
External System Module	ORS NIGHT AU	DIT ±	Searc <u>h</u>
Business Event END OF PROCEDURES NA DATAMART REVENUE SUM ROLL BUSINESS DATE		Data Element BUSINESS DATE	
			New
			Delete
			Clear Ca
			Ţ <u>C</u> lose

Synchronize Data Marts

The data marts data needs to be synchronized with the property's past data up to the current business date, at the time when OBI is first implemented. This includes the synchronization processes of:

Synchronize OBI Data Mart Utility

Note: Please be aware that the process Synchronize OBI Data Mart Utility generates intense traffic.

Synchronize OBI Data Mart Utility

Select **Utilities>Synchronize Utilities>Synchronize OBI Data Mart Utility** to display the OBI & Datamart Synchronize Utility screen. Use this screen to populate data mart tables for the first time for OPERA Business Intelligence (OBI) use, or to recalculate and update the data mart tables, ensuring they contain the latest data. Once the data marts are built, they are updated after the End of Day/Night Audit Procedure.

Utilities Processors	Synchronize Utilities Data Tools Esit
SUPERVISOR	Synchronize (nventory
	Synchronize Physical Rooms
	Bysiness Event Synchronization
	Synchronize Block Occupancies
	Synchronize SC Room Grid
	Synchronize Boom Status
	Synchronize Stay Records
	Synchronize Catering Forecast Revenue
	Recalculate Sales allowance
	Recalculate Past Daily Statistics
	Synchronize Einancial Statistics
	Synchronize OBI Data Mart Utility
	Synchronize SC Data Mart

There are multiple data marts available for synchronizing, for the purposes of this document, you only need to select: Sync. Reservation Statistics.



OBI Data Mart Synchronization Overview

This procedure applies to all OBI & Datamart Synchronize Utility synchronization types. To run the synchronization process, provide the following information and select the **OK** button. When the process is complete, a message informs you "Synchronizing Complete."

OBI & Datamart Synchronize Utility Screen Description

Sync. Type	e Sync. Reserva	ation Statistics	•
Proper	y 037,038		 t
Begin Dat	e 05/25/09		
End Dat	e 06/02/09		

Sync. Type. Select the option 'Sync. Reservation Statistics' from the LOV.

Property. This LOV appears when the OPP_MHOT OPERA Property Management Multi- Property Base add-on license code or OPR<version number>ORS license code is active. Select the down arrow to select a property from the list of values.

Begin Date. Enter the beginning date for the data that will be synchronized.

End Date. Enter the ending date to be covered by the synchronization action.

Sync. Reservation Statistics

This procedure populates additional columns for access by OBI for all the reservation statistics created at the property. The data mart and cubes affected are:

Data mart - Reservation_stat_daily

Sync. Type	Sync. Reserve	ation Statistic:	s	•
Propert	/ 037,038			t
Begin Date	e 05/25/09			
End Date	06/02/09			

To run the synchronization process, provide the following information and select the **OK** button. When the process is complete, a message informs you "Synchronizing Complete."

Sync. Type. Select the synchronization process from the LOV. Each is explained below.

Property. This LOV appears when the **OPP_MHOT OPERA Property Management Multi- Property Base** add-on license code or **OPR<version number>ORS** license code is active. Select the down arrow to select a property from the list of values.

Begin Date. Enter the beginning date for the data that will be synchronized.

End Date. Enter the ending date to be covered by the synchronization action.

Initial Sync of Reservation Summary

This procedure is not explained in this document as it does not pertain.

Sync. Block History Statistics

This procedure is not explained in this document as it does not pertain.

Sync. Managers Report

This procedure is not explained in this document as it does not pertain.

OXI Resync Utility

When OPERA PMS has been utilized prior to the Data Mart installation, synchronize past data from PMS properties (external systems) to OXI to ORS. If this isn't done, the Reservation Summary Table and Reservation Stat Daily Table will not contain past data.

Note: Ensure that you have *disabled* the internal parameters as discussed in the previous Central Configuration section: **ENABLE_RESV_SUMMARY_LOG** and **ENABLE_RESV_STAT_DAILY.**

Connect to OXI and access **OXI>Utilities>Resync**. In this case, the only necessary resync processes are for the Stay and Data Mart options.

Note: A different utility, **Data Request**, requests data from the OPERA PMS (external systems) to ORS through OXI/OXI-HUB. See the section, **Data Request Option in OXI-HUB**.

Switch Interface Interface Status Interface Configuration	Utilities Reports Help Exit
🙀 Schema Details - V46_OXHOT2/ V46_HOTEL2 , User -	Export/Import
	Copy Conversions
	Resync
	Purge Data
	Data request

Recommendations

Resynchronization for large periods of time during peak work hours is not recommended.

- Resynchronization should be done in the late to early morning hours where Night Management or Night Audit can run without compromising system performance.
- Resynchronization can be done during the day, however keep in mind that:

Smaller time frames are preferable to larger ones.

Choose the necessary records to resync over hundreds of records at a time.

Resync Option – Datamart

Ensure that the PMS Property Configuration Application Settings are set. Then process the Datamart Resync option. Once this Datamart resync process is done (recommended when the property is activated), the Night Audit will continue to process the data marts. This Data mart process is very intensive and collects thousands of rows per day. However, this resync process does not interfere with reservations made in PMS and other mission-critical data.

Interface ORS	Opera Property SCPMS4	
		Reserva
		Block
	1	Profile
From Departure Date		Rate
To Departure Date		Restric
Sync. Type Reservation Daily Stati		Invent
		Produ
		Sta
		Datan
		Turnav
		Hurdl
		Sales Allo
		Even
		Daily Ta
		Function

From Departure Date. Select the first departure start date for the resync.

To Departure Date. Select the last departure start date for the resync.

Sync. **Type**. Select the Sync Type. Although there are many options, for the purposes of this document, you will only be selecting **Reservation Daily Statistics**.

Resynchronization History

For any resync that is executed, a record is created in the resync history table. (A record indicates a day, for which thousands of messages may be generated per day). This history record will assist you in keeping track of all resyncs done and what their status is/was.

Example: Resync History.

Interface ORS				Opera Prope	erty MEXICO	
						Reservation
						Blocks
(Profiles
From Departure D						Rates
To Departure D	ate 01-31-09	—				Rate Category
Sync. 7	Type Reservation	Daily Statistics	-			Restriction
Resync Status						X
Module	Status	Start Date	Start Time	End Time	Remarks	
DATAMART	COMPLETE	20-MAY-2010		02:58:05	Processed 31/31 records.	
HURDLE	COMPLETE	18-MAY-2010	09:56:53	09:56:54	Processed 1/0 records.	/
HURDLE	COMPLETE	18-MAY-2010	09:54:29	09:54:30	Processed 0/? records.	
HURDLE	COMPLETE	18-MAY-2010	09:54:12	09:54:13	Processed 0/? records.	c
	COMPLETE	18-MAY-2010	09:18:56	09:19:07	Processed 40/40 records.	
RATE AVAILABILITY		47.1402.0040	02:54:54	02:54:55	Resync process returned -99	
RATE AVAILABILITY	COMPLETE	17-MAY-2010	02.04.04	02.94.99	·····	
	COMPLETE	17-MAY-2010 17-MAY-2010		02:54:55	Processed 30/30 records.	
DATAMART			01:49:52			F
DATAMART DATAMART	COMPLETE	17-MAY-2010	01:49:52 01:43:30	01:49:53	Processed 30/30 records.	F
DATAMART DATAMART DATAMART	COMPLETE COMPLETE	17-MAY-2010 17-MAY-2010	01:49:52 01:43:30 01:40:07	01:49:53 01:43:30	Processed 30/30 records. Processed 31/31 records.	F

Fields

Module. Resync module that was used.

Status. Status of resync. Options are:

NEW – resync has just started.

IN PROGRESS – resync is currently being processed.

COMPLETE – resync is complete and reservations will be sent to external system if resync filters have found any records.

Start Date. System date that the Resync was run on.

Start Time/End Time. The time stamps showing full span of time to for the resync to process.

Remarks. Text message of how many records found and processed. Inventory and Stay resyncs will not display text in the remarks. A message with (-1) in it will mean that 1 or more messages did not successfully resync.

Button Functions

Cancel. Use this option to cancel out of any action on this screen.

Purge. Manual purge of the entire resync history. Only resyncs that have not been completed yet will be excluded from the deletion. A warning occurs that has to be confirmed before the purge is performed.

Refresh. To see the latest status of all resync activities.

Close. Exits the Resync History screen

Synchronize Profile Summary Tables

When OPERA PMS has been utilized prior to the transfer of reservation_stat_daily to Central, this Utility must be run to populate the child tables in central

Select **Utilities>Synchronize Utilities>Synchronize Summary Profile Statistics** to display the Synchronize Summary Profile Statistics Utility screen.

Utilities Processors Synchronize Utilities Data Tools Exit	
Synchronize Inventory	
Synchronize Physical Roo <u>m</u> s	
Business Event Synchronization	
Synchronize Block Occupancies	
Synchronize SC Room <u>G</u> rid	
Synchronize <u>R</u> oom Status	
Synchronize Stay Records	
Synchronize <u>C</u> atering Forecast Revenue	
Recalculate Sales Allowance	
Recalculate Past Daily Statistics	
Synchronize <u>F</u> inancial Statistics	
Synchronize OBI Data Mart Utility	
Sync <u>h</u> ronize SC Data Mart	
Synchronize <u>P</u> rofile Relationship Hierarchy Synchronize Summary Profile Statistics	
Synchronize Summary Prome Statistics	
	1
🧟 SCPPL - Synchronize Summary Profile Statistics	
Name Type Company	
_	
Update contact flag in reservation_stat_daily	
Name	
Property ±	
Year(YYYY) / Month	
Year(YYYY) / Month 📃 🛨 / 💽	
OK Close	

Use this screen to populate the tables company_stat_daily, agent_stat_daily, source_stat_daily, profile_monthly_statistics and profile_yearly_statistics. Once they are populated, and the application parameter OBI_POPULATE_RESVSTAT_TABLES_YN is Active, these tables will be automatically updated when reservation_stat_daily is inserted in Central via OXI after the End of Day/Night Audit Procedure.

Data Request Option in OXI-HUB

The purpose for the **Data Request** Utility is to have data sent *from* OPERA PMS to the ORS for synchronization, initiated from the ORS side. Data mart synchronization is done through this utility, sending data from PMS to ORS.

Note: Data Requests only apply when polling a V5.x OPMS.

Access this utility by selecting OXI-HUB>Utilities>Data Request.

To perform this process, users must have the permission OXIHUB>OXIHUB UTILITIES.

To initiate the Data mart Data Request, select the:

Data mart check box

Item Type from the LOV

Begin From and To Dates

OK button.

🙀 MOTTI - Data Request Synchronizatio	n	×
Interface OXI-OPERA	Property SEPARA	
Data Request Module to synchronize	Start Criteria	End Criteria
Reservations	C Arrival Date From	То
- Beachanona	C Stay Date From	То То
	C . Created Date From	То
E Blocks	C Begin Date From	То
	C . Stay Date From	То
	C . Created Date From	То
🗖 Rațes	Begin From	
F Packages	Begin From	то
□ Profiles	Created From	То
Configuration Item Type	Ł Level	<u>*</u>
Datamart Item	📃 🛓 Begin From	To
	Datamart Message Types 🛛 🛛 🗙	1
		QK
	Find %	Çlose
	Sync_Type Sync_Type_Desc ALL All	
	RESVDAILYSTAT Reservation Daily Statistics	
	MANAGERSREPO Managers Report	
	FINDAILYSTAT Financial Daily Statistics	
	RESVSUMMARY Reservation Summary	
	SCBOOKPROD SC Booking Production	
	SCCATERINGREV SC Catering Revenue	
	SCROOMSSNAPS SC Rooms Snapshot SCCATPRODUCT SC Catering Production	
	Eind QK Cancel	

Data Mart Items

There are many options available, but for the purposes of this document you would only select RESVDEAILSTAT (Reservation The available Sync Types and their Sync Type Descriptions are:

Sync Type	Sync Type Description
ALL	All
RESVDAILYSTAT	Reservation Daily Statistics
MANAGERSREPORT	Managers Report
FINDAILYSTAT	Financial Daily Statistics
RESVSUMMARY	Reservation Summary
SCBOOKPROD	SC Booking Production
SCCATERINGREVENUE	SC Catering Revenue
SCROOMSSNAPSHOT	SC Rooms Snapshot
SCCATPRODUCTION	SC Catering Production
SCCATSNAPSHOT	SC Catering Snapshot
RTAV	Room Category Inventory

Data Mart Staged Records

The Data Mart Staged Records functionality allows you to view records that were rejected, and therefore staged, by the system during data upload and conversion from PMS to OXI to ORS/OCIS data marts. These rejected records were staged because they were incomplete or inaccurate. By using the **ORS>Data Mart** screens you can view these records and their errors, make corrections, and then process them to be uploaded to the appropriate data mart. These data mart staging screens are available:

Stage Reservation Daily Statistics

Stage Reservation Summary Log

Stage Financial Statistics

Stage Reservation Daily Statistics

Stage Reservation Daily Statistics

Access the Stage Reservations Daily Statistics Staged Records screen by selecting **ORS>Data Mart>Stage Reservations Daily Statistics.** This screen displays the property, reservation status and reservation ID and other details, arrival and departure dates, and the import date of the staged record. If you want to display specific records, select the Property from the Property LOV and/or the Import Date and select **Search**.

Proper	л <u></u>	<u>+</u>			ort Date			Clear
roperty	Resv. Status	Resv. ID	Arrival	Departure	Book Date	Import Date	<u> </u>	
DLON		483808	05/26/05	06/01/05	03/30/05	07/29/05		
DLON		482418	05/27/05	05/31/05	03/21/05	07/29/05		
DLON		482422	05/27/05	05/31/05	03/21/05	07/29/05		
DLON		483803	05/27/05	06/01/05	03/30/05	07/29/05		
DLON		486700	05/27/05	06/01/05	04/11/05	07/29/05		
DLON		479015	05/27/05	08/02/05	02/24/05	07/29/05		
DLON		456369	05/27/05	06/02/05	10/18/04	07/29/05		
DLON		486699	05/27/05	06/01/05	04/11/05	07/29/05		
DLON		469012	05/27/05	05/29/05	01/03/05	07/29/05		
DLON		475216	05/27/05	05/31/05	02/04/05	07/29/05		
DLON		475217	05/27/05	05/31/05	02/04/05	07/29/05		
DLON		481489	05/27/05	05/30/05	03/14/05	07/29/05		
DLON		483806	05/27/05	06/01/05	03/30/05	07/29/05		
DLON		482423	05/27/05	05/31/05	03/21/05	07/29/05		
DLON		486710	05/27/05	06/01/05	04/11/05	07/29/05	-	
							Þ	
								Symmar
								Reproces
rrors Foun	d in Validation / Con	version						Delete

Options

You have several options for working with staged records from the Reservations Daily Statistics Staged Records screen.

Summary. Select this button to open the Error Summary screen (described below) which lists a description of all the errors that occurred while processing the reservations.

Reprocess. After you select **Edit** (see below) and make corrections to resolve the errors, select **Reprocess** to refresh the Reservation Daily Statistics Staged Records screen with the updated results.

Delete. Select this button to permanently remove the record.

Edit. Select this button to open the Reservation Daily Statistics Suspended Record screen (see below) where you can make corrections and reprocess the currently highlighted record (make the change and select the **Process** button). You can also access the Daily Statistics Suspended Record screen by highlighting the record from the Reservations Daily Statistics Staged Records screen and double-clicking.

Reservation Daily Statistics Error Summary

This screen is accessed from the **Reservations Daily Statistics Staged Records** screen, when **Summary** is selected. The Error Summary screen lists a description of all the errors that occurred while processing the reservations.

You can access the Daily Statistics Suspended Record screen by highlighting the desired record from the Reservations Daily Statistics Staged Records screen and double-clicking.

To return to the Reservations Daily Statistics Staged Records screen, select Close.

Error	Count
Reservation Status is missing	1105
Market Code is Invalid: PH	500
Room Type is Invalid: M2CAB	292
Rate Code is Invalid: SHARE	174
Channel is Invalid: AMN	138
Rate Code is Invalid: HMR05	97
Channel is Invalid: GB	84
Rate Code is Invalid: HOUSE	67
Rate Code is Invalid: RHIA RATE	56
nationality is Invalid: JP	54
Channel is Invalid: MEA	50
Channel is Invalid: JP	45
Source Code is Invalid: LH	45
Channel is Invalid: IT	38
Rate Code is Invalid: PROM9	36
VIP Status is Invalid: 35	36
Rate Code is Invalid: PROM9	

Reservation Daily Statistics Suspended Record

This screen is accessed from **Reservations Daily Statistics Staged Records>Edit** or from the Error Summary screen where you have double-clicked on an error. Here you can change the item highlighted in red, explained in the bottom Error Field.

Make the change and select the **Process** button to implement your changes.

When you return to the Reservations Daily Statistics Staged Records screen, select the **Reprocess** button.

Reservation Daily 8	Statistics Suspended Reco	rð	
Property	ADLON	Resv. ID 483808	Stage Record Id 350
Rate Code	e 📃 ±	с	channel US
Source Code	e EMA 🛓	c	Country US
Market Code	e GRP 🛓	Nat	tionality US
Room Type	e A1B 🛓	Vip	Status 1
Resv. Status	s 📃 🛨	Booked Roor	m Type 📃 🛨
Error Field	Error Description		
RESV_STATUS	Reservation Status is mis	ssing	
Errors Found in Valio	dation (Conversion		`
anors round in vali	dation / Conversion		Process Qlose

Stage Reservation Summary Log

Access the Reservation Summary Staged Records screen by selecting **ORS>Data Mart>Stage Reservation Summary Log.** This screen displays the property, the reservation (R) or Block (B) ID, and relevant dates of the staged record. For specific results, select the Property from the Property LOV and/or the Import Date and select **Search.**

Propert	у	<u>+</u>		Impo	ort Date [Search Clear
roperty	Resy. / Block	Resv. / Block ID	Considered Date	Business Date	Update Date	Import Date	-	
EPARA	B	-459341	06/11/07	06/11/07	02/18/09 10:57	08/07/09		
EPARA	8	244279	06/11/07	06/11/07	02/18/09 10:45	08/07/09		
EPARA	8	244279	06/11/07	06/11/07	02/18/09 10:34	08/07/09		
EPARA	R	1686979	05/03/07	03/23/07	11/07/07 16:49	10/29/09		
EPARA	R	1686979	05/04/07	03/23/07	11/07/07 16:49	10/29/09		
EPARA	R	1686979	05/05/07	03/23/07	11/07/07 16:49	10/29/09		
EPARA	R	1686979	05/02/07	03/23/07	11/07/07 16:49	10/29/09		
EPARA	R	1686979	05/01/07	03/23/07	11/07/07 16:49	10/29/09		
EPARA	R	1686979	05/02/07	03/23/07	11/07/07 16:49	10/29/09		
EPARA	R	1686979	05/01/07	03/23/07	11/07/07 16:49	10/29/09		
EPARA	R	1686979	05/05/07	03/23/07	11/07/07 16:49	10/29/09		
EPARA	R	1686979	05/03/07	03/23/07	11/07/07 16:49	10/29/09		
EPARA	R	1686979	05/04/07	03/23/07	11/07/07 16:49	10/29/09		
EPARA	R	1686979	05/02/07	03/23/07	11/07/07 16:49	10/29/09		
EPARA	R	1686979	05/05/07	03/23/07	11/07/07 16:49	10/29/09	-	
							F	
								Symma
								Reproce
RROR: OF	RA-00001: unique co	nstraint (V46_CENTR	AL.RESY_SUMMARY	Y_LOG_UK) violated	1 ng reservation_sumr			Delete

Options

You have several options for working with staged records from the Reservation Summary Staged Records screen.

Summary. Select this button to open the Error Summary screen (described below) which lists a description of all the errors that occurred while processing the reservations.

- **Reprocess.** After you select **Edit** (see below) and make corrections to resolve the errors, select **Reprocess** to refresh the Reservation Summary Staged Records screen with the updated results.
- Delete. Select this button to permanently remove the record.
- **Edit.** Select this button to open the Reservation Summary Suspended Record screen (see below) where you can make corrections and reprocess the currently highlighted record (make the change and select the **Process** button). You can also access the Reservation Summary Suspended Record screen by highlighting the record from the Reservations Summary Staged Records screen and double-clicking.

Reservation Summary Error Summary

This screen is accessed from the **Reservation Summary Staged Records** screen, when **Summary** is selected. The Error Summary screen lists a description of all the errors that occurred while processing the reservations.

On the Error Summary screen, highlight the desired error and double-click to access all records having the error. The **Reservation Summary Staged Records** screen displays where you can correct the record.

To return to the Reservations Summary Staged Records screen, select Close.

Property ±	Import Date		Searc
			Clea
Error Summary			
Error		с	ount
Room Type is Invalid: M2CAB			907
Rate Code is Invalid: BUMBLE			410
Rate Code is Invalid: BOOK			Q
Rate Code is Invalid: ASB			g
Rate Code is Invalid: RHIA RATE			6
darket Code is Invalid: PH			6
Rate Code is Invalid: CUR_TEST			6
Rate Code is Invalid: BARD			4
Rate Code is Invalid: SUMMER			
Rate Code is Invalid: HDRATE		-	4
Rate Code is Invalid: CANCEL			3
Rate Code is Invalid: PROM			3
Channel is Invalid: HERE			2
Rate Code is Invalid: JIMMY			2
Rate Code is Invalid: FREDADV			1
Rate Code is Invalid: ~DUMMY			22

Reservation Summary Suspended Record

This screen is accessed from **Reservation Summary Staged Records>Edit** or from the Error Summary screen when you double-click on an error. Here you can change the field highlighted in red, explained in the bottom Error Grid.

Make the change and select the **Process** button to implement your changes.

When you return to the Reservations Summary Staged Records screen, select the **Reprocess** button.

Reservation Summary Suspended Reco	rd		×
Property SEPARA	Resv. / Block ID 1913230	Stage Re-	cord Id 235539
Rate Code BOOK	<u>e</u>	Channel 📃 🛓	
Source Code GUD	1	Country 📃 🛨	
Market Code ALL	<u>.</u>	Nationality 📃 🛨	
Room Type DLX	Ł		
Resv. Status RESERVED	E		
Error Field Error Description			
RATE_CODE Rate Code is Invalid	BOOK		
Errors Found in Validation / Conversion			
Errors Found In Validation / Conversion			Brassa Class
			Process Close

Summary

This concludes the information on preparing the transfer for reservation_stat_daily for your site. Refer to OPERA Online Help and the OBI Installation and Configuration Guide for more information on how to install OBI at your site, assign users, and build and maintain OBI cubes.